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Chairman’s
Message

&)lall udao yuad)

Samir Yaqoob Al Nafisi

Chairman

In the name of Allah, Most Gracious, Most Merciful.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present
to you the Directors’ Report of Inovest for the year ended 31
December 2012.

The 2012 fiscal year began against a backdrop of fragile
recovery on a global level. Regionally, prevalent political
uncertainty and tepid financial revivals did pose a burden on an
already vulnerable recovery and on investors’ appetites for new
projects. Internationally, several economies faced the impact
of debt burdens on a national, corporate, and even individual
household level. This backdrop makes achievements attained
all the more worthy. For us at Inovest, and across the Group,
we are greatly encouraged by the progress we have made in
spite of this challenging environment.

2012 Performance Overview

Sustained value creation remains a top priority for us as a
Group; across the years we have consistently sought to
develop projects that play a dual role in growing our portfolio
as well as contributing to the progress of the Kingdom of
Bahrain. This year has been no different. Our approach has,
however, been tapered by conscious effort towards managing
risks, ensuring due diligence, alignment with the corporate
vision, and maintaining our dedication to seeing our selected
ventures through to fruition before embarking on new ones.

To that end, 2012 saw significant development occurring in our
Durrat Marina project, which lies just north of Durrat Al Bahrain.
The launch of the first phase of development which includes
a comprehensive schedule of works for the construction
of 20 sea-facing villas, marina, and for infrastructure, is well
underway. Tamcon, the Group’s construction subsidiary
also had a busy year, handling several national level projects
such as affordable housing units developed for the Ministry
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of Housing, as well as national sports facilities developed in
6 locations for the 21st Gulf Tournament. Takhzeen, a self
storage facility launched in 2012, saw a growth in occupancy
rates as did the Labour Accommodations — a response to
increasing awareness for affordable and safe housing options
for workers. We have also concluded sales of plots in both
the Tameer Commercial District (Istiglal Avenue) and in Al Noor
Development (Hamad Town).

Financial Results

On the basis of our business strategy and on ground
developments, Inovest’s activities within the Group resulted
in an upward drive in our total income, which increased from
USD2.7 million in 2011 to USD8.6 million in 2012.

Our ongoing prudence and stringent administration of costs
resulted in lower administrative expenses and financing costs
were also reduced from USD4.3 million (2011) to USD 3.9
million (2012), and from USD5.4 million (2011) to USD4 million
(2012) respectively. As a result, overall expenses within the
Group declines from USD26 million in 2011 to USD17.6 million
in 2012. Net losses within the Group, which stood at USD23.3
million at the end of 2011 and have reduced to USD9 million at
the end of 2012 Total shareholders’ equity stood at USD171.2
million as of the end of 2012, in comparison to USD180.7
million reported at the end of 2011.
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Chairman’s Message

(continued)

Recognizing a Strategic Future

Looking to the future, there is no doubt that the forthcoming
year will be a demanding one. Our achievements this year,
across the Group, reinforce our belief in our operational cost
management strategy, business strategy for diversification and
income generation, as well as our dedication to maintaining the
caliber of our executive and management team. Accordingly
there is a solid conviction that in coming years, the Group will
be able to deliver greater improvements in profitability in a
sustainable manner.

At the Inovest level, we are poised to take advantage of growth
opportunities at a national and regional level. In our Dannat
project, located in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, final project
permits has been granted and the development of will begin
in the first half of 2013. We also expect promising results from
our other through ventures in water technology, food security,
oil and gas, and pharmaceuticals. In Tameer, Tamcon, and
Circo the momentum to capture a fuller scope of work from
development, to project management, and advisory have
already begun manifesting itself within our association with
infrastructure and affordable housing projects commissioned
by the Ministry of Housing.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express
my appreciation to His Majesty King Hamad bin Isa Al Khalifa,
His Royal Highness Prince, Khalifa bin Salman Al Khalifa, the
Prime Minister and His Royal Highness Prince Salman bin
Hamad Al Khalifa, the Crown Prince and Commander in Chief
of the Bahrain Defense Force for their continued and consistent
leadership and support.

My thanks also go to the ministries and governing bodies of
Bahrain for their cooperation throughout the year; we look
forward to sharing a mutually beneficial and prosperous year
with them and with our shareholders, investors, board of
directors, business partners, and employees whose dedication
to the Group’s interest has been and continues to

be unwavering.
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We look to the future with optimism and we ask God Almighty
to guide us in our endeavors.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

»
119

v

Samir Yaqoob Al-Nafisi
Board Chairman
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Managing Director’s
Message

Olasll aily 2l
\TJA_LLOJ|6)|A!J|UAAJ;O gAc

Ahmed Al Qattan

Managing Director

In the name of Allah, Most Gracious, Most Merciful.

With the closing of our last financial year, Inovest had already
set into place preparations for the year to come. Having faced
some challenging years with marked changes to the investment
climate and appetite, we prepared for 2012 to be a year of
focused improvements, ensuring existing ventures were well
managed and that new prospects were diligently assessed so
we would be positioned to face 2013 on a more favorable note
than in the years gone by.

At the footholds of 2013, Inovest stands on much firmer
grounds having spent the past few years implementing a series
of strategic improvements. Many of these improvements were
grounded in a strategy that balanced business flexibility in
developing new opportunities and realism in our focus on the
completion of existing projects. This approach reflected in our
Group results, which saw losses reduced from US$9 million at
the end of 2012 to US$23 million at the end of 2011. Likewise,
in the Group’s non-real estate projects the company made
significant strides bringing a number of projects from inception
stages well into the production stage.

With the same determination and capability, Inovest faced the
challenge of maintaining appropriate liquidity levels to meets its
financial obligations and operational requirements, ensuring the
Group’s overall stability and well-being. One of its key strategic
improvements was the reduction of financing to US$ 39.27
million at the end of 2012 from the previous year’s US$ 50.05
million.

It is gratifying to note the improvements made at the Group level
in spite of challenging conditions. On the project level, Takhzeen,
the Group’s self storage facility located in Bahrain Investment
Wharf (BIW), and which was soft launched at the end of the
previous fiscal year, had a successful first year of operations
capturing both individual and commercial clientele and showing
solid growth in its leased units. Also in BIW, growing awareness
of the importance of safe housing for labourers has contributed
to occupancy rates of between 90100%- in the Group’s Labour
Accommodation project. In that regard, and in response to
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market demand, phase 2 of the Labour Accommodations have
started. In the construction industry, Tameer has successfully
established its capabilities through its main subsidiary Tamcon
which is effectively developing a number of housing units in
partnership with government housing mandates. Tamcon is
also handling a number of projects for Inovest, extending its
range of exposure and experience in construction.

On the financial front, Inovest’s year-end results saw
consolidated shareholders equity at US$ 172.221 of which
US$ 113.953 million is paid-up capital. The company’s well
located assets maintained much of their value despite a market
reduction in land prices during the financial crisis. Today, the
Group is considering options for the use of these spaces in
executing qualitative, value-adding projects. Inovest aims to
see itself return to profitability in 2013, and to sustain its stability
and capital standing in order to uphold its investment portfolio
valued at US$ 5 billion.

Overall, 2012 has been a year in which we have proven our
resilience and ability to adapt to the challenges. This has earned
us a level of cautious optimism for the year to come; not only in
terms of our sustained progress on existing projects, but also in
our ability to garner new opportunities for development. We are
confident in our capabilities, in our chosen growth sectors and
in our prudent and risk managed approach to business.

As always, on behalf of myself and the executive management,
| extend my sincere appreciation to the shareholders, partners,
clients, and staff members who have diligently worked within
their respective capacities to support and contribute to our
success.

We ask God Almighty to continue to guide our steps on the
path to future success.

Ahmed Rashed Al Qattan
Managing Director
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Corporate Governance Report

Inovest is committed to its mandate of meeting global
best practices and regulatory requirements in regards to
corporate governance; seeking to promote the levels of
transparency, corporate fairness, and accountability within
the organization. The company’s philosophy towards
corporate governance ties in well with these values and
those of the organization. Inovest has in this year continued
to strengthen its corporate governance agenda, introducing
and instating policies and initiatives aimed at ensuring
awareness of the importance of appropriate policies,
procedures, and behavior across the board.

Governance Framework

Inovest has established a framework that provides
guidance for the effective governance of the Company. The
company’s governance structure reflects the segregation of
functions and responsibilities at the Board and Management
level, with each clearly aware and capable of fulfilling their
relevant roles and responsibilities. This includes policies,
procedures, guidelines and relevant management reporting
designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Board in
monitoring the governance practices within the company.
It also means the necessary and appropriate management
structure is in place and equipped to perform the day-
to-day task of managing and running Inovest across all
business capacities. Inovest is committed to continuously
reviewing and enhancing its corporate governance policies
and to incorporating necessary improvements from time to
time.

Communication with
Shareholders and Investors

To encourage transparency and foster the culture of active
communication, the Board strives to maintain an open
communication channel with its investors and shareholder
at all times. In addition, the Board ensures to communicate
its strategy clearly to the stakeholders and maintain an
active dialogue with stakeholders.

Inovest is committed to publicly disclose to all stakeholders
transparent, comprehensive and timely information, in
which it publishes its financial statements on its website
and maintains it at all times.

The means of communication with investors and
shareholders is through the annual report of the company
and the AGM, press releases and advertisements, corporate
announcements through Bahrain Bourse and Kuwait Stock
Exchange, quarterly update reports to investors, arranging
Investors visits, and through the company’s websites

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012

Shareholders Information

Outstanding

Nationality No of Shares Shares (%)
Al Muthana Investment

Kuwaiti 43,108,255 15.05%
Co.
Dubai Islamic Bank Emirati 19,748,883 6.89%
Others Various 223,654,087 78.06%

Director’s Ownership of Shares

Name ‘ No of Shares %

Dr. Mohammed Abdulla Al-Madi 5,045,104 1.76%
Fareed Soud Al Fozan 962,650 0.33%
Samir Yagoob Al Nafisi 474723 0.166%
Jamal Abdul Rahman Al Rowaiyeh 230,238 0.08%
Ahmed Rashed Al Qattan 200,511 0.069%
Talal Khalid Al Nesf 94,160 0.032%
Mohammed Ebrahim Al Nugaimish 78050 0.027%
Bashar Naser Al Tuwaijri 78050 0.027%
Abdulrahman Yousif Fakhroo 49,530 0.017%
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Board of Directors
Information

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the strategic orientation of the
company as translated into its structural organization, the
approval of macro-policies and procedures, the integrity and
sound industry acumen behind the company’s business and
investment decisions, as well as monitoring the progress
of such business decisions and their related performance
levels. New Board members are informed of their roles and
responsibilities as Board members as well as their duties
within Committee memberships.

Board and Directors’ Responsibilities
The principal responsibilities of the Board are:
Strategic:

e  Setting direction, i.e. vision, mission, values, ethics and
business practice.

e At least annually, review and approve the overall
business performance and strategy

e Review and approve business plan and long-term
objectives.

e Determine values to be implemented throughout the
Company.

e Review and evaluate present and future opportunities,
threats and risks in the external environment and
current strengths, weaknesses and risks relating to the
Company.

e  Ensure that the corporate organisational structure and
capability are appropriate for implementing the chosen
strategies.

Operational:

e Overseeingthe conduct of the Company’s business and
operations in order to evaluate whether the Company
is being properly managed, including compliance with
all applicable laws and regulations.

e Ensuring financial statements are prepared which
accurately disclose the Company’s financial position.

e Reviewing and ensuring the adequacy and integrity
of the Company’s internal control and management
information systems, including systems for compliance
with all applicable laws and regulations.

e Ensuring appropriate financial planning, operating and
reporting framework as well as a risk management
framework is established. Elements under this
combined framework is the operating plan and
budget, financial statements, departmental strategic/
performance review reports and risk management
reports.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012

Corporate Governance Report
(continued)

Reviewing, on a regular basis, who has authority to enter
the Company into contractual obligations.

Assessing the Company’s current and future aspirations
with respect to its position in the market place, its size,
products, value and other key aspirations considered
important by investors. A description of the Company’s
strategy should be included in the annual financial
statements.

|dentifying proactively and understanding the significant
risks company faces in achieving its business objectives.

Risk Management:

|dentifying principal risks and ensure the implementation of
appropriate framework, systems and controls to manage
these risks

Corporate Governance:

Ensuring the Company adheres to the highest standards of
ethics and corporate behaviour.

Monitoring conflicts of interest and preventing abusive
related party transactions.

Monitoring the adequacy and implementation of the
Company’s Corporate Governance Framework.

Assessing and documenting (each year) whether the
internal corporate governance processes have successfully
achieved their objectives, and consequently whether the
Board has fulfilled its responsibilities for directing and
monitoring the overall conduct of the Company’s affairs.

The results of the review must be summarised in a written
certification, to be signed by all Board members, and sent
to the CBB within 3 months of the financial year-end of the
Company. The Board must report any material deficiencies
identified during the review, along with an action plan and
timescales for their correction.

Periodically assessing the composition and size of the
Board and where appropriate reconstitute itself and its
committees by selecting new directors to replace long-
standing members or those members whose contributions
to the Board or its committees is not adequate.

Reviewing (e.g. every one or two years) the mix of executive,
non-executive and independent non-executive Directors,
and skills and experience that it requires.

The Company must disclose to its shareholders in the
Annual Report any abstention from voting motivated by a
conflict of interest and must disclose to its shareholders any
authorisation of a conflict of interest contract or transaction
in accordance with the Company Law.

Annual Report any abstention from voting motivated by a
conflict of interest and must disclose to its shareholders any
authorisation of a conflict of interest contract or transaction
in accordance with the Company Law.
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Human Resources:

e Succession planning, including appointing, training,
fixing the compensation of and, where appropriate,
replacing senior management. At least annually the
board shall review and concur in a succession plan
addressing the policies and principles for selecting a
successor to the CEO, both in emergencies and in
the normal course of business. The succession plan
should include an assessment of the experience,
performance, skills and planned career paths for
possible successors to the CEO.

e Establishing objective performance evaluation and
measurement systems for the Company.

e The board shall appoint officers whose authority shall
include management and operation of current activities
of the company, reporting to and under the direction of
the board. The officers shall include at a minimum; a
CEO, a chief financial officer, a corporate secretary and
an internal auditor, and shall also include such other
officers as the board considers appropriate.

e The board should also specify any limits which it wishes
to set on the authority of the CEO or other officers,
such as monetary maximums for transactions which
they may authorize without separate board approval.

e Monitoring management performance.

e Approve and review at least annually the Company’s
management structure and responsibilities.

Monitoring:

e Qversight of the proper functioning of all the subsidiaries
of the Company.

Accountability:

e Understand and take into account the interests of
shareholders and relevant stakeholders.

e  Monitor relations with shareholders and relevant
stakeholders by gathering and evaluation of appropriate
information.

e Promote the goodwill and support of shareholders and
relevant stakeholders.

e Convening and preparing the agenda for shareholder
meetings.

e Assuring equitable treatment of shareholders including
minority shareholders.

Delegation:

e Although the Board may delegate certain functions
to its sub - committees or management, it may not
delegate its ultimate responsibility to ensure that an
adequate, effective, comprehensive and transparent
corporate governance framework is in place.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012

Corporate Governance Report
(continued)

e Delegate appropriate authority to the management,
monitor and evaluate the implementation of policies,
strategies and business plans.

e Determine monitoring criteria to be used by the Board.
e Communicate regularly with senior management.

Code of Conduct

The Board has an approved Code of Conduct for the
Executive Management and employee. These codes
outline areas of conflict of interest, confidentiality, anti-
money laundering, bribery, and the responsibilities of
signatories to adhere to best practices.

Whistle Blowing Policy

The Company has a whistle blowing policy with designated
officials to whom the employee can approach. The policy
provides adequate protection and confidentiality to the
employees for any reports. The Board’s Audit Committee
overseas this policy

Conflict of Interest

At all times, the Directors ensure to avoid circumstances
which may result in interests that conflict with those of the
Company. Inovest has a documented procedure for dealing
with situations involving “conflict of interest” of Directors.
In the event of Board or its Committees considering any
issues involving “conflict of interest” of Directors, the
decisions are taken by the full Board / Committees.

Board of Directors and Board Committee
Memberships

Inovest is governed by an elected board of directors,
who are ultimately responsible for the management and
performance of the Company. The current Board was
elected by shareholders at the general assembly on March
29th, 2011 for a fixed term of three years valid until the
annual General Meeting due in 2013.

Name ‘ Representation ‘ Title ‘ Exe/Non Exe

Samir Yaqoob Al Nafisi | Al Nafisi Family Chairman Non-Executive

Fareed Soud Al Fozan | Al Fozan Family Vice Non-Executive

Chairman

Ahmed Rashed Al Group of Investors | Managing Executive

Qattan Director

Mohammed Ebrahim Al | Al Muthana Board Non-Executive

Nugaimish Company Member

Abdul Rahman Yousif Board Independent

Fakhroo Member Non-Executive

Jamal Abdul Rahman Al Rowaiyeh Family | Board Non-Executive

Al Rowaiyeh Member

Bashar Naser Al Gulf Investment Board Non-Executive

Tuwaijri House Member

Dr. Mohammed Abdulla | Shareholder Board Non-Executive

Fahad Al-Madi Member

Talal Khalid Al Nesf Kuwait Finance Board Non-Executive
House Member
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Corporate Governance Report

(continued)

Samir Yaqoob Al-Nafisi
Board Chairman
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Al-Nafisi has extensive management experience in a
number of different sectors including trading, manufacturing
and financial services. He is currently General Manager of
Yaqoob Al-Nafisi & Sons Company, and former General
Manager of Al-Nafisi Trading Company, both based in
Kuwait.

Prior to this, he held managerial positions at Kuwait
Commercial Bank and Kuwait Insulating Materials
Manufacturing Company. Mr. Al-Nafisi has equally extensive
experience of serving on the Boards of numerous financial
institutions and companies in the GCC.

He is currently the Chairman of Al Khaleej Development
Company (Bahrain), Muthana Investment Company
(Kuwait), Vice Chairman of Kuwait Finance House (Kuwait),
and formerly a Board member of Gulf Investment House
(Kuwait), and Khalegji Commercial Bank (Bahrain), Gulf
Finance House (Bahrain), and International Turnkey
Systems (Kuwalit).

Fareed Soud Al Fozan
Board Member and Vice Chairman
Non-Executive Director

Farid Saud Al-Fozan is currently the Vice-chairman of
Gulf Group Holding Company a Kuwaiti based company
that owns a number of specialist companies strategically
located throughout the GCC

countries.

He is a board member on a number of investment, real
estate and financial companies, namely: Boubyan Bank
(Kuwait), Gulf Real Estate (Saudi Arabia), Amlak Real
Estate Co. (Kuwait) SAFCORP (Kuwait) and Al Khaleej
Development Company BSC (Bahrain).

He is also the Chairman of Young Arab Leaders Organization
Kuwait Chapter (an NGO). Mr. Al-Fozan graduated from
Kuwait University with a Bachelor Degree in Business
Administration majoring in Banking and Finance.

Ahmed Al Qattan
Managing Director
Executive Director

A Certified Public Accountant from Georgia State Board
of Accountancy, USA, Mr. Al- Qattan holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Accounting from the University of Bahrain.

Mr. Al Qattan has extensive experience in the banking,
manufacturing, oil and gas, trading and contracting sectors
across the GCC.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012

Before joining Inovest, he was Chief Investment Officer at
Gulf Finance House and, prior to this, a Partner at Arthur
Andersen in the Kingdom of Bahrain. Mr. Al- Qattan is
Chairman of Bahrain Investment Wharf and Vice Chairman
of Tala Property Development Company.

Abdulrahman Fakhro
Board Member - Independent
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Fakhro has a long standing and successful history
as a board member and executive within numerous
organizations. Mr. Fakhro is the current Chairman of Yusif
Bin Yusif Fakhro B. S. C . and of the Bahrain Commercial
Facilities Company. Additionally he is a Board Member in the
Bahrain Flour Mills Co. B.S.C. and in General Organization
for Social Insurance ( SIO ); in the latter he also holds the
position of Investment Committee Chairman.

Bashar Naser Al Tuwaijri
Board Member
Non-Executive Director

A Bachelor Degree in Banking and Finance from Kuwait
University. Mr. Al Tuwaijri joined GIH in 2004 and is currently
the Senior Vice President of Direct Investment, Investment
Funds and Investment Placement.

Prior to that, Mr. Al Tuwaijri has held the position of Vice
Chairman of Amar Finance and Leasing Co., Kuwait, Vice
Chairman of Madain Property Co., Dubai, Board member of
Inovest Investment Co., Bahrain.

Mr. Al Tuwaijri is also the Vice Chairman of Majan
Development Co., Oman. From 1996 to 2003, he held
several positions at NBK before being appointed Corporate
Credit Manager.

Jamal Abdul Rahman Al Rowaiyeh
Board Member
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Al-Rowaih has over 25 years of experience in the real
estate sector, managing the extensive Al-Rowaih family
real estate portfolio. He also holds the position of General
Manager in Razan General

Trading and Contracting and Razan International Real Estate
specializing in various real estate trading, acquisitions,
leasing and management of properties.

Mr. Al-Rowaih also founded and contributed to a number
of project funds in various sectors such as real estate,
industrial and finance with a regional spread in Saudi Arabia,
Bahrain, Lebanon, Dubai and Oman.

Mr. Al-Rowaih graduated in 1980 with Bachelor Degree
in Business Administration Faculty of Commerce and
Economics and Political Science from Kuwait University
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Corporate Governance Report

(continued)

Dr. Mohammed Abdulla Al Madhi
Board Member
Non-Executive Director

Dr. Mohammed Al-Madhi is currently a board member of
the Public Pension Agency and also a board member in
Raidah Investment Company.

Dr. Al Madhi has a vast experience in the academic and
military fields. He held various positions in Saudi Arabian
Ministry of Defense & Aviation (MODA) from 1962 to 1990.
In 1991, Dr. Al-Madhi held the position of consultant to
the CEO in government relations at Advanced Electronic
Company in Saudi Arabia. In addition, Mr. Al-Madhi used
to be a part time instructor in various military and civilian
educational institutions.

Mr. Al-Madhi holds a Doctorate of Philosophy in Political
Science & Public Administration from lllinois University in
USA (1975). Before that, he gained his Master of Public
Administration in 1970 from the University of Kansas in
USA. His Bachelor degree was in Art, Political Science and
Economics from King Saud University in Saudi Arabia.

Mohammed Ebhrahim Al Nugaimish
Board Member
Non-Executive Director

Holds a Master Degree in Business Administration (MBA)
from Maastricht School of Business. Mr. Alnughaimish,
who joined GIH in early 2002, is a Senior Manager, running
the International Fund Department (IFD) and handling the
Private Equity projects in DID.

Mr. Alnughaimish has held a number of positions such
as a Board of Director in the Excellence Education Co.
(Kuwait) and Arkan AlKuwait Real Estate Co. (Kuwait) and
is currently a Board of Director in Inovest Co. (Bahrain) and
Gulf Real Estate in Saudi Arabia, Stronghaven, Inc. (USA)
and Transocean Capital, Inc. (USA).

Talal Khalid Al Nesf
Board Member
Non-Executive Director

A professional with more than 18 years experience in
various banking, finance and investment fields, Mr. Al-Nesf
heads the Private Banking Department at Kuwait Finance
House (Kuwait), considered as one of the leading Islamic
banks in the region.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012

Mr. Al-Nesf is a member on the executive committee for
enhancement of fund’s base and a chartered wealth
manager and a registered financial specialist from the
American Academy of Financial Management.

Mr. al-Nesf serves as a member of various companies
including KFH Asset Management SDN BHD (Malaysia),
Aviation Lease and Finance Co. (ALAFCO) (Kuwait), and
Al Salam International Hospital Co. (Kuwait). Mr. Al-Nesf
graduated with a Bachelor Degree in Commerce from
Kuwait University.

Board Terms and the Start Date of
Each Term

Directors may serve on the Board until the General
Assembly of the Company for the next year following his/
her appointment, and may not be re-elected after reaching
the retirement age, unless this requirement has been waived
by the Board for a valid reason. A Director shall serve for a
period of three years. The term starts at the end of March
for 3 years.

Induction and Training of Directors

The Company makes sure that all its members have the
knowledge, ability and experience to perform the functions
required of a director. Hence, an awareness program is
conducted to board members on Corporate Governance
and its new updated developments and practices in the
market.
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Corporate Governance Report
continued

Board Committees and

Executive Committee

Membership
Sameer Al Nafisi V -
Audit Committee Ahmed Al Qattan v \
Fareed Al Fozan Chairman Abdulrahman Fakhro N v
Mohammed Al Nughaimish Deputy Chairman Bashar Al Tuwaijri N N
Mohammed Al Madhi Member Talal Al Nesf N N
Jamal Al Ruwaih Member
Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance
Committee

Executive Committee 7/2/12 9/56/12 7/11/12

Sameer Al Nafisi Chairman Sameer Al Nafisi J J J

Ahmed Al Qattan Deputy Chairman Fareed Al Fozan . ) J

Abdulrahman Fakhro Member Ahmed Al Qattan J J J

Bashar Al Tuwaijri Member

Talal Al Nesf Member Audit Committee

4 8 6

Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Fareed Al Fozan - J N J J .
Governance Committee Mohamed Al ! ! _ : ! !

Sameer Al Nafisi Chairman Nugaimish

Fareed Deputy Chairman 'I\D/Ir. mghammed Al N J J J J J

adhi
Ahmed Al Qattan Member
Jamal Al Ruwaih vV v v v V v

Risk Management Committee

Mohammed Ebrahim Al Nugaimish Chairman Board Meetlngs
Dr. Mohammed Abdulla Al Madhi Deputy Chairman Meetin
) 9 (1/412) | (2/5/12) | (3/6/12) | (4/7/12) | (5/8/12)
Jamal A.Rahman Al Rowaiyeh Member Ref
Fareed Al Fozan Member 11Jan12 | 8Feb12
H H Samir Yagoob Al
Board Committee Meetings and e J J Y v V| s
Attendances Fareed Soud Al
. v - v v V|4
. . ozan
Risk Management Committee
Ahmed Rashed Al
a Vv Vv v Vv Vv 5
attan
Bashar Naser Al
Tuwaijri ) v v v v ‘
Mohamed Al Nugaimish N - N N \
Dr. Mohamed Al Madhi N N V V V Jamal Abau
" : Rahman Al V v v v v 5
Jamal Al Ruwaih v v V v v Rowaiyeh
Fareed Al Fozan - v v v - Talal Khalid Al Nesf V v v Vv v 5
Abdulrahman Yousif
Fakhroo v ) v v v ‘
Mohammed Ebrahim
Al Nughaimish v v i v v ‘
Dr. Mohammed
Abdulla Al-Madi v v v v v 0
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Corporate Governance Report

(continued)

Director’s trading of
company shares during
the year

None

The Management

Inovest’s executive management handles the day-to-day
operation and performance of the company and each of
its subsidiaries, advising the Board of developments and
progress.

Ahmed Al-Qattan
Managing Director

A Certified Public Accountant from Georgia State Board
of Accountancy, USA, Mr. Al- Qattan holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Accounting from the University of Bahrain.
Mr. Al Qattan has extensive experience in the banking,
manufacturing, oil and gas, trading and contracting sectors
across the GCC. Before joining Inovest, he was Chief
Investment Officer at Gulf Finance House and, prior to
this, a Local Partner at Arthur Andersen in the Kingdom of
Bahrain. Mr. Al- Qattan is Chairman of Bahrain Investment
Wharf and Vice Chairman of Tala Property Development
Company, Chairman of Marina Durrat Al-Bahrain, Chairman
of Tamcon & Circo

Mohammed Abdulla Isa
Chief Financial Officer

Mohamed Isa joined Inovest in September 2004. Since
he joined this company, he played an instrumental role in
achieving several corporate milestones such as handling
the company’s Initial Public Offering, its cross-listing on
Kuwait Stock Exchange its Rights Issue, the re-launch of
its new corporate identity and its corporate restructuring
program.

Before joining Inovest, he worked for the multinational
giant — Unilever — in its offices in United Arab Emirates and
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. His last post with the company
was Regional Finance Manager for North Africa, Middle
East and Turkey.

Mohamed is a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) from
Colorado State Board of Accountancy in USA. He also
holds a BSc in Accounting from University of Bahrain and
a Master of Business Administration (MBA) from University
of Hull in UK.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012

Mohammed Al Abbasi
Head of Risk and Compliance

Mr. Mohammed Al-Abbasi, a Bahraini national, Director —
Head of Risk and compliance at Inovest BSC. Mr. Al-Abbasi
has over 14 years of experience in Banking, with a strong
focus on Product Knowledge, IT Knowledge, Compliance,
Risk Management and Business Development Processes.
He was a Director — Head of Risk & Compliance at
ProCapital Associates prior to joining Inovest on April 2010,
in which he established the Operations, Risk Management
and Compliance departments. Mr. Al-Abbasi began his
career with BBK in 1999 in IT Development then moved to
Business Development.

Mr. Al-Abbasi is an MBA holder and he is a Certified Risk
Analyst (CRA) from the American Academy of Financial
Management. He also holds a B.Sc. degree in Computer
Science from the University of Bahrain.

Hamad Zainalabdeen
Head of Internal Audit

Hamad Zainalabedeen joined Inovest BSC (“Inovest”) in
2009 as the Head of Internal Audit Department. Hamad
has extensive experience of working in financial institutions
and professional world-renowned audit firms over the last
13 years. Prior to joining Inovest, Hamad was the Senior
Principal of Investment Dar Bank'’s Internal Audit Department
where he setup the Internal Audit framework and conducted
internal audit assignments aided by a risk-based internal
audit plan, with periodic tracking and statistical reporting
system for audit issues. Hamad has also worked as a
Principal with Gulf Finance House Internal Audit Department
where he was responsible for audits of various investments
in private equity, real estate and infrastructural development.
Before that, Hamad was working with Ernst & Young and
Arthur Andersen as an external auditor where he was
exposed to statutory audits of Islamic Investment banks,
manufacturing entities, government organizations and other
industries while also performing other assignments such as
internal audit reviews, valuations and feasibility studies.
Hamad holds an Executive MBA and Bachelors of Science
in Accounting from the University of Bahrain and has been
honored by the Kingdom of Bahrain’s Prime Minister for
excellence in studies.
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Corporate Governance Report

(continued)

Mohammed Abdulkhaliq
Executive Director — Business Development

Prior to joining the group in 2004, Mr. Abdul Khalig held
a number of management positions with Bahrain Kuwait
Insurance Company in the Kingdom of Bahrain. He also
served as Chairman of the Market Committee for Property
and Casualty Insurance in Bahrain. His current Board
memberships include Chairman of Coldwell Banker Bahrain,
and Vice Chairman of Adhari Park Development Company,
Board member of Bahrain Investment Wharf Company.

Mr. Abdul Khalig is an Associate of the Chartered Insurance
Institute (ACIl), UK. He also holds a B.Sc. degree in Civil
Engineering from the University of Bahrain, and a member
of Bahrain Society of Engineers.

Murad Al Ramadhan
Chief Investment Officer

Mr. Murad Al Ramadan is the Chief Investment Officer at
Inovest, an Investment professional with more than 13
years industry experience in Financial Services, Investment
Banking, and Real Estate Investment and Development.

Mr. AlRamadan joined the group in 2009 as the Deputy CEO
and Head of Investment of Inovest’s real estate investment
arm Al Khaleej Development Co. (Tameer), responsible for
originating and structuring investment opportunities as well
as managing the existing investment portfolio of the group.
Prior to joining Inovest, Mr. Al Ramadan worked for Gulf
Finance House (GFH) as an Investment Director where he
structured and managed real estate investment transactions
in excess of US$1 billion. Mr. Al Ramadan started his career
in Accounting and Auditing holding various positions and
worked for the world known Audit & Advisory firm KPMG in
Bahrain and Qatar.

Mr. Al Ramadan holds a B.Sc in Accounting from the
University of Bahrain, and an MBA (honors) from New York
Institute of Technology (NYiT)-USA.

Risk Management

The Board has the overall responsibility for establishing
the group’s risk management culture and ensuring that an
effective framework is in place. Risk is an inherent part of
Inovest’s businesses and acknowledging and managing
appropriate risk levels is critical to the Company’s continuing
success and profitability. As such, Inovest proactively
identifies, assesses, manages and monitors risks in its
decisions and operations with specific consideration to
credit risk, market risk, liquidity, and operational risk. Active
involvement of the Board and senior management in the
risk management process is vital to the development of an
effective control environment.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012

Internal Control

In pursuing its strategy and business plan, Inovest inevitable
relies on its internal control to provide reasonable, though
not absolute, assurance as to the integrity and reliability of
financial statements. The company has invested in ensuring
the means of safeguarding, verifying and maintaining
accountability. The internal control also works to detect
fraud, potential liability, loss and material misstatement, all
the while complying with applicable laws and regulations.

Code of Conduct

Inovest has a board-approved Code of Conduct that
dictates the policies and procedures governing ethical
behavior, best practice obligations, honesty, transparency,
confidentiality issues, money laundering,

and prohibition of insider trading, amidst many numerous
others. The Code of Conduct is readily available to all new
and existing staff of Inovest, and its subsidiaries, in both
English and Arabic.

Management Committees

The board delegates the authority and responsibility of
day to day management to the CEO, who in turn uses a
number of cross-functional teams to ensure financial and
non-financial performance:

Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO)

The Asset and Liability Committee manages the asset
and liability structure of Inovest, as well as the liquidity
and the funding strategy of the Company. This involves
monitoring and reviewing the financial risks and ensuring
that appropriate strategies exist for management of the
Company’s assets, liabilities and capital.

Executive Management Committee

The Executive Management Committee oversees the
management of the Company’s administrative, financial,
legal and information technology functions effectively.

Investment Management Committee

The Investment Management Committee oversees the
management’s investment of Company’s cash, short term
and long term investments in the operation of the business
of the Company.

Membership of the aforementioned committees is as
follows:

Member Asset-Liability | Executive Investment
(ALCO) Management | Management

Ahmed Al Qattan | Chairman Chairman Chairman

Dr Khalid Abdulla | Member Member Member

Laith Al Memar Member

Mohammed Member Member

Abdulla Isa

Mohammed Member Member

Abulkhalig

Hamad Non-voting

Zainalabedeen Member

Mohammed Al- Member Member Member

Abbasi
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Sharia Advisor's Report

In the name of Allah, the Beneficent, the Merciful,
Prayers and Peace Upon the Last Apostle and Messenger, Our Prophet Mohammed, His Relatives and Companions.

The Shari’a Supervisory Board “The Board” of INOVEST B.S.C. has reviewed the Company activities and compared them
with the issued Fatwas and Rulings during the financial year ending 31 December 2012 and found them compatible with
them.

The Board believes that he has expressed its opinion in respect of the activities carried out by INOVEST and it is the
responsibility of the management to ensure the implementation of such decisions.

A representative of the company’s management explained and clarified the contents of the Financial Statements for the
year ending 31 December 2012. The report of the Board has been prepared based on the information provided by the
company.

The Board is satisfied that the activities and services carried by INOVEST are in compliance with the Glorious Islamic
Sharia’a.

Praise be to Allah, Lord of the Worlds. Prayers be upon Prophet Mohammed Peace Be Upon Him, Relatives and

Companions.

On behalf of the Committee,

Shaikh Mohammed A.Razaiq Al Tabtabaee
Chairman

Shaikh Anwar Shuaib Abdul Salam
Vice Chairman

Shaikh Adnan Ali Al Mulla
Member

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Inovest BSC

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Inovest B.S.C. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012, the consolidated
statement of income, the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, the consolidated statement of cash
flows and the consolidated statement of sources and uses of charity fund for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The management of the Group is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organisation
for Islamic Financial Institutions and International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The management of the Group is also responsible for the Group’s
undertaking to operate in accordance with Islamic Sharia’a rules and principles.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with both Auditing Standards for Islamic Financial Institutions and International Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2012, and its consolidated financial performance, the changes in its consolidated
cash flows and sources and uses of charity fund for the year then ended in accordance with the Financial Accounting
Standards issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organisation for Islamic Financial Institutions and Sharia’a rules and
principles as determined by the Sharia’a Supervisory Board of the Company.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 25 in the financial statements, which describes the uncertainty related to the outcome of a
legal case between the Group and an investor in a project managed by the Group, where the investor is claiming up to
USD23.7 million. No liability has been provided in the consolidated financial statements. Our conclusion is not qualified in
respect of this matter.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, Decree Number 21 of 2001, and the Central Bank of Bahrain
(CBB) Rule Book (Volume 4), we report that: the Group has maintained proper accounting records and the consolidated
financial statements are in agreement therewith; the consolidated financial information contained in the Directors’ report is
consistent with the consolidated financial statements; in addition to what has been reported in Note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements, we are not aware of any violations of the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, Decree Number
21 of 2001, the Central Bank of Bahrain and Financial Institutions Law, the CBB Rule Book (Volume 4 and applicable
provisions of Volume 6) and CBB directives, Regulations and Associated Resolutions, Rules and Procedures of the Bahrain
Bourse, or the terms of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association having occurred during the year ended
31 December 2012 that might have had a material adverse effect on the business of the Company or on its consolidated
financial position; and satisfactory explanations and information have been provided to us by the management of the
Company in response to all our requests.

BD o

Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain
8 February 2013

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012
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Inovest B.S.C.
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

Notes 2012 2011
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 7 6,109 11,139
Mudaraba and murabaha investments 8 3,760 9,042
Trade and other receivables 9 67,946 67,377
Available-for-sale investments 10 26,611 28,845
Investment in a joint venture/associates 11 90,811 90,999
Investment properties 12 89,598 97,716
Property, plant and equipment 13 7,706 6,159
Total assets 292,541 311,277
LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 14 82,052 80,533
liara and murabaha financing 15 39,268 50,053
Total liabilities 121,320 130,586
EQUITY
Share capital 16 114,604 114,604
Less: treasury shares 16 (651) (651)

113,953 113,953

Share premium 17 30,760 30,760
Statutory reserve 17 21,473 21,473
Share option reserve 17 28 474
Retained earnings 17 5,007 14,031
Total equity 171,221 180,691
Total liabilities and equity 292,541 311,277

These consolidated financial statements, set out on pages 7 to 48, were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
8 February 2013 and signed on their behalf by:

» Q vz

Ahmed Rashed Al-Qattan

Samir Yagoob Al-Nafisi . )
Managing Director

Chairman

15 Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012
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Inovest B.S.C.
Consolidated statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

Notes 2012 2011
Income
Income/(loss) from properties 18 1,238 8,313
Income from investments 19 77 1,344
Income from advisory services 20 2,329 1,139
Net income from construction contracts 21 3,167 4,739
Share of profits/(losses) from investment in a joint
venture/associates 11 883 (1,556)
Other income 183 370
Total income 8,577 2,723
Expenses
Staff costs (5,263) (5,365)
General and administrative expenses (3,889) (4,259)
liara and Murabaha financing costs (4,011) (5,436)
Property related expenses (181) (115)
Depreciation 13 (922) (1,164)
Provision for impaired receivables 9 (1,061) (8,740)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale-investments 10 (2,274) (2,024)
Provision on corporate guarantee provided 25 - (8,382
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 13 - (526)
Total expenses (17,601) (26,011)
Net loss for the year (9,024) (23,288)
Basic and diluted loss per share 23 (8.17) cents (8.17) cents

16 Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012
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Inovest B.S.C.

Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for the year ended 31 December 2012

(Expressed in US$000’s)

Share

Share  Treasury Share Statutory . Retained
Note . . option . Total

capital shares premium reserve earnings

reserve

At 31 December 2010 114,604 (651) 30,760 21,473 1,535 37,319 205,040
Net loss for the year = = = = = (23,288) (23,288)
Net reversal of stock option charge 22 - - - - (1,061) - (1,061)
At 31 December 2011 114,604 (651) 30,760 21,473 474 14,031 180,691
Net loss for the year - - - - - (9,024) (9,024)
Net reversal of stock option charge 22 - - - - (446) - (446)
At 31 December 2012 114,604 (651) 30,760 21,473 28 5,007 171,221

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012
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Inovest B.S.C.
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

Notes 2012 2011
Operating activities
Net loss for the year (9,024) (23,288)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 13 1,174 1,610
(Reversal of)/stock option charge 22 (446) (1,061)
Provision for impaired receivables 9 1,061 3,740
Share of (profits)/losses from investment in a joint venture/associates 11 (883) 1,556
liara and Murabaha financing costs 4,011 5,436
Loss/(profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment (49) 9
Realised gains on sale of investment properties 18 (1,506) (241)
Unrealised fair value losses on investment properties 18 1,685 4,876
Realised losses on sale of available-for-sale investments 19 - 200
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments 10 2,274 2,024
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 13 - 526
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Properties-under-development - (1,042
Trade and other receivables (1,630) 6,471
Trade and other payables 1,519 (11,814)
Cash used in operating activities (1,814) (10,998)
liara and Murabaha financing costs paid (4,011) (5,436)
Net cash used in operating activities (5,825) (16,434)
Investing activities
Purchase of available-for-sale investments 10 (40) -
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale investments - 4173
Cost of acquisition of investment in a joint venture/associates 11 - (2,000)
Proceeds from sale of investment in a joint venture/associates 752 5,859
Dividends received from a joint venture/associates 11 319 -
Proceeds from sale of investment properties 6,000 25,370
Net movement in Mudaraba and Murabaha investments 5,282 872)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 13 (785) (299
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 52 -
Net cash provided by investing activities 11,580 32,231
Financing activities
Net repayment of ljara and Murabaha financing (10,785) (21,941)
Net cash used in by financing activities (10,785) (21,941)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (5,030) (6,144)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 11,139 17,283
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 7 6,109 11,139

Non-cash transactions:
The transaction towards the transfer of investment properties (Note 12) to property, plant and equipment (Note 13) and

purchase of investment properties (Note 12) in swap of sale of investment properties during the year ended 31 December
2012 have been excluded from the consolidated statement of cash flows being non-cash transactions.
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Inovest B.S.C.

Consolidated statement of sources and uses of charity fund
for the year ended 31 December 2012

(Expressed in US$000’s)

2012 2011
Sources of charity fund
Contribution by the Company = -
Total sources = -
Uses of charity fund
Contributions to charitable activities (144) (265)
Total uses (144) (265)
Excess of uses over sources (144) (265)
Undistributed charity fund at 1 January 786 1,051
Undistributed charity fund at 31 December 642 786

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

1 Organisation and activities

Inovest B.S.C. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries comprise “the Group”. The Company is a public shareholding company
registered with the Ministry of Industry and Commerce in the Kingdom of Bahrain and operates under commercial registration
number 48848 obtained on 18 June 2002, The Company commenced commercial operations on 1 October 2002. In
accordance with the terms of its Memorandum and Articles of Association, the duration of the Company is for 50 years,
renewable for further similar periods unless terminated earlier by the operation of law or as provided in the Memorandum
and Articles of Association.

The Company is listed on the Bahrain Bourse and cross-listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange.

The Company has been issued an Investment Business Firm License — Category 1 (Islamic Principles) by the Central Bank
of Bahrain (CBB), to operate under the Islamic Sharia’a principles, and is supervised and regulated by the CBB.

The principal activities of the Company include:

- Engaging directly in all types of investments, including direct investment and securities, and various types of
investment funds.

- Establishing and managing various investment funds.

- Dealing in financial instruments in the local, regional and international markets.

- Providing information and studies related to different types of investments for others.

- Providing financial services and investment consultations to others.

- Establishing joint ventures with real estate, industrial and services companies inside or outside the Kingdom of
Bahrain and committing to operate under the Islamic Sharia’a principles.

- Having interest or participating in any way with companies and other entities engaged in similar activities that may
work and co-operate to achieve the Company's objectives inside and outside the Kingdom of Bahrain, and also
merge its activities with the above mentioned entities and/or buy or join with them.

Although the Company has an Investment Business Firm License — Category 1 (Islamic Principles) issued by the CBB in
September 2008, it continues to hold real estate assets and related revenues and costs in its consolidated financial statements.
These assets existed prior to obtaining the license from the CBB. The Company has transferred its entire real estate assets and
the related revenues and costs to its fully owned subsidiary, Al Khalegj Development Co. B.S.C. (c), which primarily carries out
real estate and construction related activities. Since this subsidiary is fully owned by the Company, the real estate assets and
revenues and costs continue to appear in the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012. Notes 12, 15, 18 and 21 in these consolidated financial statements reflect the Group’s transactions arising from holding
of real estate assets and their corresponding liabilities and revenues and costs arising therefrom.

The number of staff employed by the Group as at 31 December 2012 was 552 (31 December 2011: 491).

The registered office of the Company is in the Kingdom of Bahrain.
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

2 Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards (‘FAS”)
issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organisation for Islamic Financial Institutions (“the AAQIFI"), the Bahrain Commercial
Companies Law, Decree Number 21 of 2001 and the Central Bank of Bahrain and Financial Institutions Law 2006. For matters
which are not covered by the AAOIFI standards, Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) have been applied.

Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investment in a joint
venture/associates which are equity accounted and available-for-sale investments, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and investment properties which are stated at thelr fair values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with FAS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Functional currency

United States Dollars is the Group's functional currency and also the currency in which the Company's share capital is
denominated. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared in United States Dollars.

3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries,
after elimination of all inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised surpluses and deficits on transactions between
the group companies. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and are no
longer consolidated from the date that control ceases. All inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses
on transactions between group companies are eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the costs cannot be
recovered. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed, where necessary, to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Entities controlled by the Group by virtue of holding more than fifty percent of the voting shares are considered as subsidiaries.
Entities over which the Group has significant influence and which are not subsidiaries are considered either as associates or
joint ventures. Associates include entities in which the Group holds twenty percent or more of the voting share capital. A joint
venture is a contractual arangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint control.
The Group’s share of income in a joint venture associates is accounted for using the equity method.

The Group does not consolidate its holdings in those entities from which it does not obtain any benefit from its activities and the
investment is held only on behalf, and for the beneficial interest, of third parties.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012
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Inovest B.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

(Expressed in US$000’s)

3 Basis of consolidation (continued)

The details of the Company’s investment in subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are as follows:

Proportion of o Total Net loss for the
Name of the Country of . Principal assets at year ended
L . . ownership .
subsidiary incorporation Interest activities December 31 December 31
2012 2012
Al Khalegj ) 99.98% Management and
Development Klggiom of :2011) development of 260,384 (4,136)
(Co.B.S.C. (c anran (99.98% properties
A company
established to hold
Tameer for Private Kingdom of 99% thifg%ig; SP ;;es 600 )
.Management W.L.L Bahrain (99% :2011) .
employees in respect
of the employees’
stock option plan

The total assets and net profit/(loss) for the year of the subsidiaries have been extracted from audited financial statements

prepared as at, and for the year ended, 31 December 2012.

The consolidated financial statements of the subsidiaries have been consolidated as though the Company owns 100% of
these subsidiaries, as the other shareholders hold their shares on behalf, and for the beneficial interest, of the Company.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

4 Significant accounting policies

Accounting policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements is set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank
balances and short-term Mudaraba and Murabaha deposits which have original maturity period of 90 days or less.

Mudaraba and Murabaha investments and profit

Mudaraba and Murabaha investments are accounted for at cost plus margin ‘sales price’. The gains and losses which result
from Mudaraba and Murabaha transactions, are recognised in the consolidated statement of income over the period of the
related contracts. Mudaraba and Murabaha investments usually have maturity periods ranging between 91 days and 360
days.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are carried at their anticipated realisable values. An estimate is made for impaired trade receivables based
on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year-end. The requirement of provision for impairment is analysed on a case-
by-case basis to identify the likely-hood of non-recoverability (if any). Impaired receivables are written-off during the year when
there is no expectation of recovering the related receivables.

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that are not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
These include investments in certain quoted or unquoted securities that the Group will not hold till maturity. Available-for-sale
investments are initially recorded at cost and subsequently remeasured at their fair values. Any unrealised losses resulting from
the re-measurement at fair value of available-for-sale investment shall be recognised in investment fair value reserve as a part of
shareholders’ equity. In case unrealised losses exceed the available balance in investment fair value reserve, the unrealised fair
value losses shall be recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. In case there are unrealised losses
that have been recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unrecognised gains related to the
current financial period shall be recognised to the extent of crediting back such previous losses in the income statement. Any
excess of such gains over such prior period losses shall be added to the investment fair value reserve as a part of shareholders’

equity.

All purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, which is the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Cost of purchase includes transaction costs. Investments are derecognised when the right to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Fair value of investments listed on active markets is determined by reference to the quoted market
prices. The fair value of unquoted securities, where available, is the Group’s proportionate share of the net assets of the
investee company. In the absence of active markets or other appropriate methods from which to derive reliable fair values, the
unquoted securities are stated at cost.

Investment in joint venture

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities, being entities in which two or more parties contractually agree to share control
over an economic activity, are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, as the Group’s management believes
that it exercises joint control, that is the power, directly or indirectly, to jointly govern the financial and operating policies of the
jointly controlled entities. Equity accounting involves recording the interest in the jointly controlled entity, initially at cost, and
adjusting it for the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the results of operations of the jointly controlled entity. The
equity method is applied from the date on which the Group assumes joint control over an entity, and ceases when joint control
is relinquished.
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment in associates

The Group’s investment in associates is accounted for by the equity method of accounting. Associates are entities in which
the Group has an interest of between 20% and 50% and has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint
venture.

The investment in associates are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost plus post-acquisition
changes, less any impairment in value. The consolidated statement of income reflects the share of the results of operations of
the associates. Where there has been a change recognised directly in the associate’s equity, the Group recognises its share of
any changes and discloses this, where applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity.

Investment properties

The Group holds certain properties as investment properties to earn rental income, for capital appreciation or both. Investment
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the date of the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group engages independent valuation specialists to determine fair values as at year-end.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in the consolidated statement
of income in ‘income/(loss) from properties’ in the year in which they arise and in case of gains these are appropriated to the
investment revaluation reserve in the consolidated statement of changes in equity in accordance with the requirements of
AAOQIFI. When the investment property is disposed off the cumulative gains, previously transferred to the investment revaluation
reserve, is transferred to retained earnings.

Investment properties are derecognised when they have been disposed off or permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of investment property are
recognised in the consolidated statement of income in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by the end of owner
occupation or commencement of an operating lease. Transfers are made from investment property when, and only when,
there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of owner occupation or commencement of development with a view
to sale.

Properties-under-development

Properties-under-development represent properties held for sale in the ordinary course of business or in the process of
construction and development for its future sale. Properties-under-development are valued at cost and include expenditure
incurred in the normal course of developing and constructing the property.

Properties-under-development are derecognised when they have either been disposed-off, or when the property is permanently

withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on derecognition of a property
under development are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year of derecognition.
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and accumulated depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes all costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write-off the cost of plant and equipment to their estimated residual
values over their expected useful lives as follows:

Building on leasehold land 25 years
Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures 3-5 years
Computer hardware and software 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 years

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying amount and are
taken into account in determining net profit.

Repairs and renewals are charged to the consolidated statement of income when the expenditure is incurred.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying values may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, and where the carrying values exceed the
estimated recoverable amounts, the property, plant and equipment are written-down to their recoverable amounts.

Capital work-in-progress

Expenditure incurred on the construction of new facilities prior to the commencement of their commercial use is capitalised.
Capital work-in-progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment and depreciated at the time of commencement of
their commercial use.

Islamic financing

Islamic financing towards ljara and Murabaha financing are recognised initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction
costs incurred. In subsequent periods, these are stated at amortised cost, and any differences between proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the repayment amounts are recognised in the consolidated statement of income over the period of the
financing.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by the
supplier or not.

Provisions

The group has recognised provisions for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount including those for onerous leases, warranty
claims, leasehold dilapidations and legal disputes. The provision is measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the obligation at the reporting date, reflecting current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific
to the liability.

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses at each consolidated statement of financial position date whether there is objective evidence that an
asset is impaired. Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are impaired can include default or
delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not otherwise
consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, or
other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in
the Group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the Group. In addition, for an investment in an equity security,
a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)
a) Impairment of available-for-sale investments

Inthe case of investments in equity securities classified as available-for-sale and measured at fair value, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale investments, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the consolidated statement
of income is removed from equity and recognised in the consolidated statement of income. Impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated statement of income on equity instruments are not subsequently reversed through the consolidated
statement of income. For available-for-sale investments carried at cost, the Group makes an assessment of whether there
is an objective evidence of impairment for each investment by assessment of financial and other operating and economic
indicators. Impairment is recognised if the estimated recoverable amount is assessed to be below the cost of the investment.

b) Impairment of other non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s assets or its cash generating unit, other than financial assets, are reviewed at each
consolidated statement of financial position date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. A cash generating
unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and
groups. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or a
cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use or fair value less costs to sell. An impairment loss is recognised whenever
the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement of income. Impairment losses are reversed only if there is an indication that the
impairment loss may no longer exist and there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.

Dividends and board remuneration

Dividends and board remuneration are recognised when they become legally payable. In the case of interim dividends to
equity shareholders, this is when declared by the directors. In the case of final dividends and board remuneration, this is when
approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

Share capital

Financial instruments issued by the Group are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not meet the definition of a
financial liability or financial asset. The Group’s ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments.

Treasury shares

Shares of the Company reacquired at the consolidated statement of financial position date are designated as treasury shares
until these are reissued or cancelled. The nominal value of the treasury shares is shown as a deduction from share capital with
the difference between the nominal value of the shares and the purchase cost being adjusted against the capital reserve. The
gains or losses on sale of treasury shares are recognised in the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity.

Share based payments

The Group operates a share-based incentive scheme for its employees (“the scheme”) whereby employees are granted the
Group’s shares as compensation on achievement of certain non-market based performance conditions and additional service
conditions (the ‘vesting conditions’)

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity instrument at the grant date.
The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payment is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the statement of income such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revise estimate, with a cumulative adjustment to the stock option reserve.
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition
a) Income from sale of lease/project rights

Income from sale of lease/project rights is usually recognised when the Group obtains from investors legally binding and
irrevocable commitments to subscribe to investments promoted by the Group. The Group then recognises revenue based
on the pro-rata amounts of such signed subscription agreements as at the consolidated statement of financial position
date, and the terms specified in the related Private Placement Memorandum.

b) Advisory services income and project management fees

Income from advisory services and project management fees are recognised based on the stage of completion of the
service at the consolidated statement of financial position date by reference to the contractual terms between the parties.

c) Rental income

Property rental and service charge income, arising from the letting-out of investment properties to tenants, is recorded
based on the agreement entered into with the tenants and is recognised on the accruals basis.

d) Contract income and costs
Contract income is recognised under the percentage of completion method.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised by reference to the
stage of physical completion of the contract. Contract income and costs are recognised as income and expenses in the
consolidated statement of income in the accounting year in which the work is performed. The contract income is matched
with the contract costs incurred in reaching the stage of completion, resulting in the reporting of income, expenses
and profit which can be attributed to the proportion of work completed. Profits expected to be realised on construction
contracts are based on estimates of total income and cost at completion.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, the contract income is recognised to the extent
of contract costs incurred up to the year-end where it is probable those costs will be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised when incurred. The excess of progress billings over contract costs is classified under trade and other payables
as due to customers for construction contracts.

Losses on contracts are assessed on an individual contract basis and if estimates of cost to complete the construction
contracts indicate losses, provision is made for the full losses anticipated in the period in which they are first identified.

The aggregate of the costs incurred and the profit/loss recognised on each contract is compared against the progress
billings up to the year-end. Where the sum of the costs incurred and recognised profit or loss exceeds the progress
billings, the balance is shown under trade and other receivables as due from customers for construction contracts. Where
the progress billings exceed the sum of costs incurred and recognised profit or loss, the balance is shown under trade and
other payables as due to customers for construction contracts.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
e) Property management fees

Property management fees are recorded based on agreements entered into with the owners of the property and is
recognised on the accruals basis.

f) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.
g) Other income

Other income is accounted for on the accruals basis, unless collectibility is in doubt.
Earnings prohibited by Sharia’a

The Group is committed to avoid recognising any income generated from non-Islamic sources. Accordingly, all non-Islamic
income is credited to a charity account where the Group uses these funds for charitable purposes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in the consolidated statement of income in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. The aggregate
benefit of lease incentives is recognised as a reduction of the rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Employee benefits

Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service
is provided. A provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing

plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by
the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Post employment benefits

Employee benefits and entitlements to annual leave, holiday, air passage and other short-term benefits are recognised
as they accrue to the employees. The Group contributes to the pension scheme for Bahraini nationals administered by
the Social Insurance Organisation in the Kingdom of Bahrain. This is a defined contribution pension plan and the Group’s
contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of income in the year to which they relate. In respect of this plan,
the Group has a legal obligation to pay the contributions as they fall due and no obligation exists to pay the future benefits.

The expatriate employees of the Group are paid leaving indemnity in accordance with the provisions of the Bahrain Labour
Law. The Group accrues for its liability in this respect on an annual basis.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Gains
and losses arising from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation, at the year-end rates, of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, are recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
makers. The chief operating decision makers have been identified as the Managing Director and Chairman of the Group.

i) Standards applicable
Improvements/amendments to IFRS 2011/2012 cycle

Improvements/amendments to IFRS issued in 2011/2012 cycle contained numerous amendments to IFRS that the IASB
considers non-urgent but necessary. ‘Improvements to IFRS’ comprise amendments that result in accounting changes to
presentation, recognition or measurement purposes, as well as terminology or editorial amendments related to a variety of
individual IFRS standards. The amendments are effective for the Group’s annual audited financial statements beginning on or
after 1 January 2013 with earlier adoption permitted. No material changes to accounting policies are expected as a result of
these amendments.

Standards, amendments and interpretations issued and effective in 2012 but not relevant

The following new standards, amendments to existing standards and interpretations to published standards are mandatory for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012 or subsequent periods, but are not relevant to the Group’s operations:

Standard or Eﬁgotlve for lanrlwual
periods beginning
interpretation Title on or after
IAS 12 Income Taxes 1 January 2011
First Time Adoption of International Financial
IFRS 1 Reporting Standards 1 January 2011
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures 1 January 2011
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

b) Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective in 2012

The following IFRS, FAS and IFRIC interpretations issued/revised as at 1 January 2012 or subsequent periods have not been
early adopted by the Group’s management:

Standard or perods begining
Interpretation Title on or after
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 1 July 2012
IAS 19 Employee Benefits 1 January 2013
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2013
IAS 32 Financial Instruments — Presentation 1 January 2014
IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of International Financial 1 January 2013
Reporting Standards
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures 1 January 2013/
1 January 2015
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Classification and Measurement 1 January 2015
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013
IFRS 11 Joint Agreements 1 January 2013
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2013
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of Surface Mine 1 January 2013
FAS 26 Investment in Real Estate 1 January 2013

There would have been no change in the operational results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 had the Group
early adopted any of the above standards applicable to the Group.

c) Early adoption of amendments or standards in 2012

The Group did not early-adopt new or amended standards in 2012.
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

b) Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective in 2012

The following IFRS, FAS and IFRIC interpretations issued/revised as at 1 January 2012 or subsequent periods have not been
early adopted by the Group’s management:

5 Critical accounting judgment and key source of estimation uncertainty

Preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the Group’s management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. The
determination of estimates requires judgments which are based on historical experience, current and expected economic
conditions, and all other available information. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The most significant areas requiring the use of management estimates and assumptions relate to:

economic useful lives of property, plant and equipment;
classification of investments;

fair valuation of investments;

special purpose entities;

impairment of investments;

valuation of investment properties;
power to exercise significant influence;
legal proceedings;

going concern;

provisions; and

contingencies.

Economic useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful economic lives. Useful lives
are based on management’s estimates of the period that the assets will generate revenue, which are periodically reviewed for
continued appropriateness. Changes to estimates can result in significant variations in the carrying value and amounts charged
to the consolidated statement of income in specific periods.

Classification of investments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management decides on acquisition of an investment whether
it should be classified as investments designated as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss or available-for-sale
investment securities. The classification of each investment reflects the management’s intention in relation to each investment
and is subject to different accounting treatments based on such classification.
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

5 Critical accounting judgment and key source of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair valuation of investments

The Group determines fair values of investments that are not quoted in active markets by using valuation techniques such as
discounted cash flows and recent transaction prices. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on market
conditions and information about the investee companies. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties
and matters of significant judgment and therefore, cannot be determined with precision. There is no certainty about future
events (such as continued operating profits and financial strengths). It is reasonably possible, based on existing knowledge,
that outcomes within the next financial year are different from assumptions that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investments. In case where discounted cash flow models have been used to estimate fair values, the
future cash flows have been estimated by the management based on information from and discussions with representatives
of the management of the investee companies, and based on the latest available audited financial statements and un-audited
management accounts.

Special Purpose Entities

The Group sponsors the formation of Special Purpose Entities (SPE’s) primarily for the purpose of allowing clients to hold
investments. The Group provides corporate administration, investment management and advisory services to these SPE’s,
which involve the Group making decisions on behalf of such SPE’s. The Group administers and manages these SPE’s on
behalf of its clients, who are by and large third parties and are the economic beneficiaries of the underlying investments. The
Group does not consolidate SPE’s that it does not have the power to control and these SPE’s are held on behalf, and for the
beneficial interest, of third parties. In determining whether the Group has the power to control an SPE, judgments are made
about the objectives of the SPE’s activities, its exposure to the risks and rewards, as well as about the Group’s intention and
ability to make operational decisions for the SPE and whether the Group derives benefits from such decisions.

Impairment of investments

The Group determines that investments are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
below its cost. This determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgment and is assessed for each investment
separately. In case of quoted equity securities, the Group considers a decline of more than 30% in the fair value below cost to
be significant and considers a decline below cost which persists for more than 6 months as prolonged.

Where fair values are not readily available and the investments are carried at cost, the recoverable amount of such investment is
tested for impairment. A significant portion of the Group’s available-for-sale investments comprise of investments in long-term
real estate development projects. In making a judgment of impairment, the Group evaluates among other factors, evidence of
deterioration in the financial health of the project, impacts of delays in execution, industry and sector performance, changes in
technology, and operational and financing cash flows. It is reasonably possible, based on existing knowledge, that the current
assessment of impairment could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the investments within the next
financial year due to significant changes in the assumptions underlying such assessments.

Valuation of investment properties

The Group obtains valuations performed by external independent property valuers in order to determine the fair value of its
investment properties. These valuations are based upon assumptions including future rental income, anticipated maintenance
costs and the appropriate discount rate. The independent property valuers also make reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties.

The level of activity in the investment property market has been at a low level for the past twelve months, primarily because of
the reduced availability of credit and global market conditions. The lack of comparable market transactions has resulted in a
greater level of professional judgment being relied upon in arriving at valuations. Changes in the underlying assumptions could
have a significant impact on the fair values presented. Further information in relation to the valuation of investment properties is
disclosed in Note 12 to these consolidated financial statements.

Power to exercise significant influence

Where the Group holds over 20% of voting rights (but not over 50%) and the Group does not exercise significant influence,
the investment is treated either as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss or available-for-sale investments. More
information is disclosed in Note 10 to these consolidated financial statements. Where the Group holds more than 50% of
the voting rights and exercises only temporary control or joint control, the investment is treated either as investment in a joint
venture or available-for-sale investments. Details are given in Notes 10 and 11 to these consolidated financial statements.
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

5 Critical accounting judgment and key source of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Legal proceedings

The Group recognises a provision where there is a present obligation from a past event, a transfer of economic benefits is
probable and the amount of costs of the transfer can be estimated reliably. In instances where the criteria are not met, a
contingent liability may be disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. Obligations arising in respect of
contingent liabilities that have been disclosed, or those which are not currently recognised or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements could have a material effect on the Group’s financial position. Application of these accounting principles
to legal cases requires the Group’s management to make determinations about various factual and legal matters beyond its
control.-

The Group reviews outstanding legal cases following developments in the legal proceedings at each reporting date, in order
to assess the need for provisions and disclosures in its consolidated financial statements. Among the factors considered
in making decisions on provisions are the nature of litigation, claims or assessment, the legal process and potential level of
damages in the jurisdiction in which the litigation, claims or assessment has been brought, the progress of the case (including
the progress after the date of the consolidated financial statements but before those statements are issued), the opinions or
views of legal advisers, experience on similar cases and any decision of the Group’s management as to how it will respond to
the litigation, claim or assessment.

Going concern

The management of the Group reviews the financial position on a periodical basis and assesses the requirement of any
additional funding to meet the working capital requirements and estimated funds required to meet the liabilities as and when
they become due. In addition, the shareholders of the Group ensure that they provide adequate financial support to fund the
requirements of the Group to ensure the going concern status of the Group.

Provisions

The Group creates provision for impaired receivables to account for estimated losses resulting from the inability of customers
to make the required payments. At 31 December 2012, in the opinion of the Group’s management, a provision of US$5,402
thousand is required for impaired receivables (2011: US$4,400 thousand) (Note 9). When evaluating the adequacy of the
provision for impaired receivables, management bases its estimate on current overall economic conditions, ageing of the
receivable balances, historical write-off experience, customer creditworthiness and changes in payment terms. Changes in the
economy, industry or specific customer conditions may require adjustments to the provision for impaired receivables recorded
in these consolidated financial statements.

Contingencies

By their nature, contingencies will only be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment
of such contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment and estimates of the outcome of future events.

6 Segmental information

Business segments - primary reporting segment

The Group’s primary segment reporting format is business segments. A business segment is a group of assets and operations
engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different to those of other business

segments. The Group’s primary business segments are:

e |nvestment and related services - This division is involved in investment and other related services. This division
contributes a negative (135%) of the Group’s revenue.

e  Construction contracts - This division is involved in undertaking construction contracts and contributes 185% of
the Group’s revenue.

e Development and sale of industrial plots - This division is involved in sale and development of industrial plots and
contributes 83% of the Group’s revenue.

e Property and facility management services - This division is involved in facility management of the properties.
This division is the smallest of the Group’s four divisions and contributes 33% of the Group’s revenue.
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

6 Segmental information (continued)

Business segments - primary reporting segment (continued)
As at, and for the year ended, 31 December 2012

Development Property
Investment : .
Construction and sale of and facility -
and related : ) Eliminations Total
. contracts industrial management
services ‘
plots services
Net revenues from
external customers 396 3,167 2,351 820 - 6,734
Inter-segment transactions - 381 - 148 (529) -
Income from investments 567 196 11 3 - 777
Net share of profit from
investment in a joint venture/
associates (Note 11) 722 - 161 - - 883
Other income 68 9 106 - - 183
Total revenues 1,753 3,753 2,629 971 (529) 8,577
Segment profit/(loss) (11,599) 1,942 774 240 (381) (9,024)
Reportable segment assets 273,640 31,843 63,266 2,107 (78,315) 292,541
Reportable segment liabilities 59,126 8,604 62,032 976 (9,418) 121,320
Other segment information
Depreciation (Note 13) 710 326 85 53 - 1,174
Investment in a joint
venture/associates (Note 11) 81,641 - 9,170 - - 90,811
As at, and for the year ended, 31 December 2011
Development Property
nvestment Construction and sale of and facility R
and related . ) Eliminations Total
. contracts industrial  management
services .
plots services
Net revenues from
external customers 384 4,739 1,751 567 - 7,441
Unrealised fair value losses from
investment properties (4,876) - - - - (4,876)
Inter-segment transactions - - 1,520 107 (1,627) -
Income from investments 910 269 159 6 - 1,344
Net share of losses from
investment in a joint venture/
associates (Note 11) (338) - (1,218) - - (1,556)
Other income 238 14 53 65 - 370
Total revenues (3,682) 5,022 2,265 745 (1,627) 2,723
Segment profit/(loss) (22,122) 2,993 (2,647) 8 (1,520) (23,288)
Reportable segment assets 302,318 27,507 72,316 1,937 (92,801) 311,277
Reportable segment liabilities 70,825 6,210 62,380 1,046 (9,875) 130,586
Other segment information
Depreciation (Note 13) 771 695 88 56 - 1,610
Investment in a joint
venture/associates (Note 11) 81,989 - 9,010 - - 90,999
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

6 Segmental information (continued)

Geographical segments — secondary reporting segment

A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic environment that are subject
to risks and return that are different from those of segments operating in other economic environments.

The Group’s activities are restricted to investing in real estate projects and in private equity and property funds in the GCC.

The following is a geographical distribution of the Group’s investments:

31 December 2012 31 December 2011

GCC GCC

Investment properties 89,598 97,716

Available-for-sale investments 26,611 28,845
7 Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 2012 31 December 2011

Short-term Mudaraba and Murabaha deposits 618 4,145

Current account balances with banks 5,475 6,986

Cash on hand 16 8

6,109 11,139

Short-term Mudaraba and Murabaha deposits represent amounts placed with financial institutions, which have original maturity
periods of less than 90 days, and earn market rates of profit. The profits from Mudaraba and Murabaha deposits are recognised
over the period of the related contracts.

The current account balances with banks are non-profit bearing.

8 Mudaraba and Murabaha investments

Mudaraba and Murabaha investments represent amounts placed with financial institutions, which have maturity periods ranging

between 91 to 360 days, and earn market rates of profit per annum receivable on maturity. The profits from Mudaraba and
Murabaha investments are recognised over the period of the related contracts.

9 Trade and other receivables

31 December 31 December
2012 2011
Non-current portion of trade and other receivables
Amounts due from related parties (Note 24) 25,260
Current portion of trade and other receivables
Trade receivables 32,418 31,797
Amounts due from related parties (Note 24) 9,773 36,919
Prepayments and other receivables 4,761 2,573
Rents receivable 399 484
Advances to contractors and suppliers 737 4
48,088 71,777
Less: provision for impaired receivables (5,402) (4,400)
42,686 67,377
Total trade and other receivables 67,946 67,377
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

9 Trade and other receivables (continued)

As at 31 December, the ageing of unimpaired trade and other receivables is as follows:

Total Less than More than

months 6 months 6

At 31 December 2012 67,946 10,536 57,410
At 31 December 2011 67,377 12,061 55,316

Unimpaired trade receivables are expected, on the basis of past experience, to be fully recoverable. In the opinion of the Group’s
management, the fair values of the trade and other receivables are not expected to be significantly different from their carrying
values.

The trade receivables stated at a carrying amount of US$15.125 million (2011: US$15.125 million) are secured as guarantee
against the ljara and Murabaha financing facilities obtained (Note 15).

Amounts due from related parties are unsecured, bear no profit, have no fixed repayment terms and are authorised by the
Group’s management.

The Group’s trade receivables are primarily denominated in Bahrain Dinar.

The movement in the Group’s provision for impaired receivable is as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December
Opening balance 4,400 688
Provision for the year 1,061 3,740
Written-off during the year (59) (28)
Closing balance 5,402 4,400

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables are disclosed separately in the consolidated statement of income.
Amounts charged to the provision account are generally written-off when there is no expectation of recovering the related
receivables.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable mentioned above.

10 Available-for-sale investments

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

Opening balance (before impairment provision) 32,329 36,702
Purchases during the year 40 3,598
Disposals during the year - (7,971)
32,369 32,329

Less: Provision for impairment (5,758) (3,484)
Closing balance 26,611 28,845
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

10 Available-for-sale investments (continued)

Available-for-sale investments include investments in unlisted companies whose shares are not traded on active markets.

The investments are primarily in closely-held companies located in the Gulf Co-operation Council countries (GCC). In the
Group management’s opinion, the fair values of these investments are not significantly different from their carrying values as at
31 December 2012.

The available-for-sale investments stated at a carrying amount of US$5.305 million (2011: US$5.305 million) are secured as
guarantee against the ljara and Murabaha facilities obtained (Note 15).

The movement in provision for impairment on available-for-sale investments is as follows:

Year ended Year ended

December 31 December 31

2012 2011

Opening balance 3,484 1,460

Increase in provision 2,274 2,024

Closing balance 5,758 3,484

11 Investment in a joint venture/associates

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

Opening balance 90,999 96,414

Dividends received during the year (319 -

Additions during the year = 2,000

Disposals during the year (752) (5,859)
Share of profits/(losses) from investment in a joint venture/

associates 883 (1,556)

Closing balance 90,811 90,999
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

11 Investment in a joint venture/associates (continued)

Details of the Group’s investment in associates are as follows:

o Percentage of
Name of the Country of Doefs;:kzlgrtézn Principal ownership interest
associate incorporation held activities
2012 2011
Property management,
) Ordinary shares development and
Tala Property Development Kingdom of of BD1,000 maintenance and 60.00% 60.00%
W.L.L. Bahrain
each purchase and sale of
properties
Durrat Marina Investment Ordinary Investment, financial,
Company Ltd Cayman Islands shares of commercial, mercantile 25.78% 25.78%
pany Ltd. BD1 each and trading activities
BIW Labour Kingdom of Ordinary seﬁ[]op?:;nbauyelrrfeynt
Accommodation thrain shares of and gevelo r?]ent of 27.08% 27.08%
W.LL. BD100 each . pmer
private properties
. Ordinary Investment, financial,
Viadaen Al l'_‘tLéZ' Company Cayman Islands shares of commercial, mercantile 29.28% 29.28%
' US$10 each and trading activities
Dannat Resort Development Ordinary Investment, financial,
P Cayman Islands shares of SR1 | commercial, mercantile 30.39% 30.39%
Company Ltd. : o
each and trading activities
Operating and
: ) Ordinary management of
gtacl:rr;zzeg(\)/yr?rz:ou;lggcan(g K'g%ﬂ?;?]m shares of general warehouses 34.33% 34.33%
9 pany £.5.%. BD100 each and import and export
of general trade items

Although the Group has a 60% shareholding in Tala Property Development Company W.L.L., the investment has been considered
as an investment in a joint venture rather than as a subsidiary, primarily because the Group exercises joint control. Accordingly, the
results of operations and assets and liabilities have not been consolidated and the interest in this joint venture has been recognised
using the equity method of accounting.

One the subsidiaries of the Group, Al Khalegj Development Co. B.S.C. (c)’s direct shareholding in BIW Labour Accommodation
W.L.L. amounted to 6.26%. However, one of the subsidiaries of Al Khaleej Development B.S.C.(c), Bahrain Investment Wharf
B.S.C. (c), holds 20.82% shares in BIW Labour Accommodation W.L.L.. Therefore, the effective ownership interest of the Group in
BIW Labour Accommodation W.L.L. as at 31 December 2012 amounted to 27.08%. Accordingly, the Group’s investment in BIW
Labour Accommodation W.L.L. has been treated as an associate in these consolidated financial statements.
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

11 Investment in a joint venture/associates (continued)

Summarised financial information of the Group’s investment in a joint venture/associates as extracted from the audited
.financial statements prepared as at, and for the year ended, 31 December is as follows

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

Total assets 347,794 369,922
Total liabilities (42,007) (48,606)
Net assets 305,787 311,316
Group's share in the net assets 90,811 90,999
Operating profit/(loss) for the year 6,319 (4,526)
Net profit/(loss) for the year 2,431 (7,392)
Group’s share in the net profit/(losses) 883 (1,556)

The investment in a joint venture/associates stated at a carrying amount of US$10.557 miillion (2011: 7.853 million) is
secured as guarantee against the ljara and Murabaha facilities obtained (Note 15).

12 Investment properties

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

Opening balance 97,716 120,145

Transferred from properties-under-development - 7,576

Transferred to property, plant and equipment (Note 13) (1,939) -

Purchases during the year 947 -

Disposals during the year (5,441) (25,129
Unrealised fair value losses on investment properties (Note 18) (1,685) (4,876)

Closing balance 89,598 97,716

Investment properties are stated at their fair values that have been determined based on valuations performed by
independent property valuers. The valuations undertaken were based on open market values, which represent the prices
at which the properties could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing buyers and knowledgeable willing sellers in an
arm'’s length transaction.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has transferred the leasehold land amounting to USD1.939 millions
from investment properties to property, plant and equipments as the Group’s management has commenced the construction
a warehouse facility on the leasehold land. Accordingly, leasehold land has been re-classified under property, plant and
equipment during the period.

The investment properties stated at a carrying amount of US$57.287 million (2011: US$58.457 milion) are secured as
guarantee against the ljara and Murabaha facilities obtained (Note 16).
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

13 Property, plant and equipment

Building Machinery

on equipment Computer Motor Capital

auip L hardware . -work-in Total

leasehold furniture and software vehicles o0ress
land and fixtures prog

Cost
At 31 December 2010 4,284 4,697 1,137 1,037 - 11,155
Additions - 51 65 74 109 299
Disposals - (46) (4) - - (50)
Impairment loss for the year - (491) (35) - - (526)
At 31 December 2011 4,284 4,211 1,163 1,111 109 10,878
Additions - 392 113 257 23 785
Transferred from investment
properties (Note 12) - - - - 1,939 1,939
Disposals - (17) 9 (230) - (256)
At 31 December 2012 4,284 4,586 1,267 1,138 2,071 13,346
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 December 2010 39 1,841 642 628 - 3,150
Charge for the year 173 903 301 233 - 1,610
Disposals - (37) (4) - - (41)
At 31 December 2011 212 2,707 939 861 - 4,719
Charge for the year 172 613 215 174 - 1,174
Disposals - (14) 9 (230) - (253)
At 31 December 2012 341 3,163 1,115 765 - 5,640
Net book amount
At 31 December 2012 3,900 1,280 122 333 2,071 7,706
At 31 December 2011 4,072 1,504 224 250 109 6,159

he Group operates from premises leased at an average monthly rent of US$86 thousand (2011: US$116 thousand per
month).

The depreciation charge for the year is allocated as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

Depreciation charged to contract costs (Note 21) 252 446
Depreciation charged to expenses 922 1,164
1,174 1,610

During 2011, the Group’s management performed an impairment test of its property, plant and equipment and confirmed that
property, plant and equipment stated at a net book value of USD526 thousand has been impaired. Accordingly, an impairment
loss of USD526 thousand has been recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the year ended
31 December 2011.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has transferred the leasehold land amounting to USD1.939 milions
from investment properties to property, plant and equipment as the Group’s management has commenced the construction
of warehouse facility on the leasehold land.. Accordingly, leasehold land has been re-classified under property, plant and
equipment during the year.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

14 Trade and other payables

31 December 31 December
2012 2011

Non-current portion of trade and other payables
Lease rent payables 50,105 50,105

Current portion of trade and other payable

Trade payables 6,455 6,762
Amounts due to related parties (Note 24) 5,748 5,208
Accruals and other payables 18,694 17,067
Retentions payable 1,049 1,385
Advances received 1 6
31,947 30,428
Total trade and other payables 82,052 80,533

Trade payables are generally payable within 60 to 90 days of the suppliers’ invoice date.

The long-term payables represent lease rent payable relating to one of the subsidiaries of the Company.

In the opinion of the Group’s management, the fair value of trade and other payables approximates to their carrying values.
Amounts due to related parties are unsecured, bear no profit, have no fixed repayment terms and are authorised by the
Group’s management.

15 ljara and Murabaha financing

31 December 31 December
2012 2011

Non-current portion of ljara and Murabaha financing
ljara payable 2,947 -
Murabaha payables 24,384 17,547
27,331 17,547

Current portion of ljara and Murabaha financing

liara payable - 3,274
Murabaha payables 11,937 29,232
11,937 32,506
Total ljara and Murabaha financing 39,268 50,053

The Group has obtained ljara and Murabaha financing to fund the acquisition of investments, purchase of properties and to
meet the working capital requirements. These liabilities bear market rates of profit and are repayable in accordance with the
repayment terms agreed with respective bankers.

The above financial facilities are secured against the following assets and bear profit at market rates.

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

Trade receivables (Note 9) 15,125 15,125
Available-for-sale investments (Note 10) 5,305 5,305
Investment in a joint venture/associates (Note 11) 10,557 7,853
Investment properties (Note 12) 57,287 58,457
88,274 86,740

That portion of the amounts which is repayable within one year from the statement of financial position date is disclosed as
current portion of ljara and Murabaha financing.

The amounts stated above equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not considered significant by management.
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Inovest B.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

(Expressed in US$000’s)

16 Share capital

31 December

2012

31 December
2011

Authorised

375,000,000 (2011: 375,000,000) shares of US$0.40 each
(2011: US$0.40 each)

150,000

150,000

Issued and fully paid-up

At 1 January

286,511,225 (2011: 286,511,225)

ordinary shares of US$0.40 each (2011: US$0.40 each)

114,604

114,604

Treasury shares

Less: 1,627,825 treasury shares (2011: 1,627,825)

treasury shares of US$Nil each (2011: US$NIl each)

651)

(651)

At 31 December

284,883,400 (2011 : 284,883,400)

ordinary shares of US$0.40 each (2011: US$0.40 each)

113,953

113,953

Treasury shares represent shares issued to Tameer for Private Management W.L.L., a subsidiary of the Company.

Additional information on shareholding pattern

i) The names and nationalities of the major shareholders and the number of shares held in which they have an
interest of 5% or more outstanding shares, without considering the treasury shares, as at 31 December 2012

are as follows:

Percentage of

Name of the shareholder Nationality Nurmber shareholding
of shares X

interest

Al-Muthana Investment Co Kuwaiti 43,108,255 15.05%

Dubai Islamic Bank Emirati 19,748,883 6.89%

Others Various 223,654,087 78.06%

286,511,225 100%

As at 31 December 2011, the shareholding pattern was as follows: N Percentage of

Name of the shareholder Nationality shareholding
of shares )

interest

Al-Muthana Investment Co Kuwaiti 71,169,677 24.84%

Dubai Islamic Bank Emirati 19,748,883 6.89%

Kuwait Finance House Kuwaiti 15,821,695 5.52%

Others Various 179,770,970 62.75%

286,511,225 100.00%

(i) The Company has only one class of equity shares and the holders of the shares have equal voting

rights. Further, all the shares issued are fully paid.

(i) The distribution pattern of equity shares, setting out the number of shareholders and
percentages in the following categories as at 31 December 2012 is as follows:

Percentage

Number Number of total

of shareholders of shares outstanding

shares

Less than 1% 942 128,723,743 44.93%
1% up to less than 5% 17 94,930,344 33.13%
5% up to less than 10% 1 19,748,883 6.89%
20% up to less than 50% 1 43,108,255 15.05%
961 286,511,225 100.00%

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

16 Share capital (continued)

Additional information on shareholding pattern (continued)

As at 31 December 2011, the distribution pattern was as follows: Percentage
Number Number of total

of shareholders of shares outstanding

shares

Less than 1% 828 87,898,264 30.68%
1% up to less than 5% 14 91,872,706 32.07%
5% up to less than 10% 2 35,570,578 12.42%
20% up to less than 50% 1 71,169,677 24.83%
845 286,511,225 100.00%

(iv) The Board of Directors collectively hold 2.52% shares of the total issued and fully paid-up share capital of the Company
(2011: 2.52%).

Details of shares owned by the Directors of the Company are as follows:

Number of shares

2012 2011

Dr. Mohammed Abdulla Fahad Al-Madi 5,045,104 5,045,104
Fareed Soud Al-Fozan 962,650 962,650
Samir Yagoob Al-Nafisi 474,723 474,723
Jamal Abdul Rahman Al-Rowaiyeh 230,238 230,238
Ahmed Rashed Al-Qattan 200,511 200,511
Talal Khalid Al-Nesef 94,160 94,160
Mohammed Ebrahim Al-Nughaimish 78,050 -
Bashar Naser Al-Tuwaijri 78,050 -
Abdulrahman Yousif Fakhro 49,530 49,530
Adel Yagoob Al-Nafisi - 8,275
Faisal Abdulla Al-Khazam - 78,050
Saleh Turki Al-Khamees - 78,050
7,213,016 7,221,291

(v) Contribution to charity
Transferred to charity fund

No contribution to charity fund relating to the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: US$NIl) was approved by the shareholders
in the Annual General Meeting held on 28 March 2012 (2010: 29 March 2011).

Proposed by the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Group do not propose any charity contributions for the year ended 31 December 2012 (31
December 2011: US$NIl).

(vi) Directors’ remuneration

No Directors’ remuneration was appropriated from the retained earnings during 2012, relating tothe yearended 31 December 2011
(2011: US$NIl thousand for the year ended 31 December 2010).

Proposed by the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company has not proposed any Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2012
(2011: US$NIl).

(vii) Dividends

No dividend was paid by the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 (31 December 2010: US$NIl) and no stock
dividend was approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held on 28 March 2012 (2010: 29 March 2011).

Proposed by the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors do not propose to pay any dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: US$NIl).
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

17 Reserves

a) Statutory reserve
In accordance with the provisions of the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, Decree number 21 of 2001, an amount
equivalent to 10% of the Group’s net profit before appropriations is required to be transferred to a non-distributable
reserve account until such time as a minimum of 50% of the issued share capital is set aside. As the Group has
reported a net loss during the year ended 31 December 2012, no transfer has been made to the statutory reserve
(2011: USS$NI).

b) Share option reserve

This represents the difference between the grant price and fair value of the Company’s share options issued to the
Group’s employees in accordance with the Employee Stock Option Plan (“ESOP”) Scheme (Note 22).

c) Treasury shares
This represents weighted average cost of own shares held in treasury and under the employee incentive scheme.
d) Share premium

This represents the amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value. Share premium is not available for
distribution.

d) Retained earnings

This represents all other net gains and losses and transactions with shareholders not recognised elsewhere.

18 Income / loss from properties Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2012 2011

Realised gains on sale of investment properties 1,506 241
Unrealised fair value losses on investment properties (Note 12) (1,685) (4,876)
Rental income 516 402
Property related facilities income 901 920
1,238 (3,313)

19 Income from investments

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

Realised losses on sale of available-for-sale investments - (200)
Murabaha profits 248 604
Dividend income 529 940
77 1,344

20 Income from advisory services

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the income from advisory fees includes fees earned by the Group with respect
to the fund raising for a related party.
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

21 Net income from construction contracts

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

Contract income 15,402 14,626
Contract costs (12,235) (9,887)
3,167 4,739

The contract costs include depreciation amounting to US$446 thousand (2010: US$497 thousand) (Note 14).
22 Staff costs

Staff costs include expenses of US$91 thousand relating to equity-settled share-based payment transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2012 (31 December 2011: US$172 thousand).

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s management reviewed the vesting condition requirements of the
Group’s ESOP and revised the number of equity instruments expected to vest based on the best probability estimates of the
Group’s employees meeting the service and non-market based performance condition requirements of the ESOP Scheme.
These revisions in the probability estimates has resulted in a reversal of an amount of US$404 thousand (2011: US$1.226
million) towards the ESOP Scheme charge which was expensed in the consolidated statement of income during the previous
years. Further, a reversal of US$133 thousand (2011: US$0.007 million) was recognised in the ESOP scheme charge due to
the forfeiture of share awards on non-satisfaction of service conditions.

23 Loss per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to the shareholders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares issued during the year.

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

Net loss attributable to the shareholders (9,024) (23,288)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 284,883,400 284,883,400
Basic and diluted loss per share (8.17) cents (8.17) cents

No bonus shares have been issued during the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, therefore, the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in the year 2012 are the same as the ordinary shares issued in the year 2011.

The Company does not have any potentially dilutive ordinary shares, hence the diluted loss per share and basic loss per share
are identical.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

24 Related party transactions and balances

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Related parties include entities over which the Group exercises
significant influence, major shareholders, directors and executive management of the Group. The Group’s transactions with
related parties are authorised by the management.

The following are the transactions and balances entered into with the related parties during the year ended and as at
31 December 2012:

Associate/ Key management Other related Total

Joint venture personnel parties ot
Income
Income from advisory services 422 12 1,386 1,820
Net income from construction contracts 670 (43) 1,011 1,638
Other income 162 - - 162
Share of profits from investment
in a joint venture/associates 883 - - 883
Expenses
General and administrative
expenses 30 - 234 264
Balances
Available-for-sale investments (Note 10) - - 6,794 6,794
Investment in a joint venture/
associates (Note 11) 90,811 - - 90,811
Trade and other receivables (Note 9) 11,659 89 23,285 35,033
Murabaha receivables and
current accounts (Note 8) - - 4 4
Trade and other payables (Note 14) - 2 5,746 5,748

The following are the transactions and balances entered into with the related parties during the year ended and as at
31 December 2011:

Associate/ Key management Other related
) . Total
Joint venture Personnel parties

Income
Income from advisory services 514 19 166 699
Net income from construction contracts 1,178 114 2,796 4,088
Other income 52 - 64 116
Share of losses from investment
in a joint venture/associates (1,556) - - (1,556)
Expenses
General and administrative
Expenses - - 257 257
Balances
Available-for-sale investments (Note 10) - - 8,236 8,236
Investment in a joint venture/
associates (Note 11) 90,999 - - 90,999
Trade and other receivables (Note 9) 13,347 95 23,477 36,919
Murabaha receivables and
current accounts (Note 8) - - 4 4
Trade and other payables (Note 14) - - 5,208 5,208
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

25 Contingent liabilities and commitments

The Group’s contingent liabilities and capital commitments are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2012 2011
Contingent liabilities 5,886 6,891

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities arise in the ordinary course of business and include acceptances and guarantees provided on behalf of
related parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has not created any additional provision against the guarantee provided
to the bankers of a related party (31 December 2011: US$3.382 million).

Further, during the year ended 31 December 2012, an investor who invested a net amount of USD14.88 million in a project
managed by the Group has filed a law suit against the Group claiming an amount of either USD18.98 million or USD23.7
million which includes the invested amount, compensation and lawyer fees. The outcome of the law suit is uncertain, but
management of the Group is confident that the finding will be in their favour, and therefore no liability has been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements.

Operating lease commitments

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

Not later than 1 year 961 978
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 2,857 382
Later than 5 years 50,105 50,105
53,923 51,465

a7 Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

26 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management

Financial assets and liabilities carried in the consolidated statement of financial position include cash and cash equivalents,
Mudaraba and Murabaha investments, available-for-sale investments, investment in a joint venture/associates, trade and other
receivables, ljara and Murabaha financing and trade and other payables. The particular recognition methods adopted are
disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when maintaining capital are:

e to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders; and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk.

e The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes during the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group includes
within net debt, ljara and Murabaha financing and trade and other payables less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes
share capital and reserves attributable to the shareholders of the Company.

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

liara and Murabaha financing 39,268 50,053
Trade and other payables 82,052 80,533
Less: cash and cash equivalents (6,109) (11,139)
Net debt 115,211 119,447
Share capital 113,953 113,953
Share premium 30,760 30,760
Statutory reserve 21,473 21,473
Share option reserve 28 474
Retained earnings 5,007 14,031
Total capital and reserves 171,221 180,691
Total capital and net debt 286,432 300,138
Gearing ratio 40.22% 39.80%

Risk management

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the determination of the Group’s risk management objectives and policies
and, whilst retaining ultimate responsibility for them, it has delegated the authority for designing and operating processes
that ensure the effective implementation of the objectives and policies to the Group’s risk and compliance function. The
Board receives quarterly reports from the Risk and Compliance Department through which it reviews the effectiveness of the
processes put in place and the appropriateness of the objectives and policies it sets. The Group’s internal auditors also review
the risk management policies and processes and report their findings to the Audit Committee.

The overall objective of the Board is to set policies that seek to reduce risk as far as possible without unduly affecting the
Group’s competitiveness and flexibility.
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

26 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)

The Group is exposed through its operations to the following financial risks:

e Liquidity risk e Reputation risk

e Operational risk e Credit risk

e Regulatory risk e Currency rate risk
e nvestment risk e Profit rate risk

e |egalrisk e  Fair value risk

Principal financial instruments
The principal financial instruments used by the Group, from which financial instrument risk arises, are as follows:

e  Cash and cash equivalents

e Mudaraba and Murabaha investments
e Trade and other receivables

e Available-for-sale investments

e Trade and other payables

e |jara and Murabaha financing

A summary of the financial instruments held by category is provided below as at 31 December 2012:

Financial assets Loans and receivables Available-for-sale
Cash and cash equivalents 6,109 -
Mudaraba and Murabaha investments 3,760 -
Trade and other receivables 67,946 -
Available-for-sale investments - 26,611
Total financial assets 77,815 26,611

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Trade and other payables 82,052
liara and Murabaha financing 39,268
Total financial liabilities 121,320

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

26 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)

A summary of the financial instruments held by category is provided below as at 31 December 2011:

Financial assets Loans and receivables Available-for-sale
Cash and cash equivalents 11,139 -
Mudaraba and Murabaha investments 9,042 -
Trade and other receivables 67,377 -
Available-for-sale investments - 28,845
Total financial assets 87,558 28,845

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Trade and other payables 80,533
liara and Murabaha financing 50,053
Total financial liabilities 130,586

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that funds will not be available to meet liabilities as they fall due. The Finance Department
along with Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) has the overall responsibility for managing the funds and the liquidity
of the Group. The day-to-day management of liquidity is the responsibility of Finance Department along with Managing
Director. The Board is being provided with quarterly liquidity reports for their review and decision making.

The following table sets out the contractual maturities (representing undiscounted contractual
cash-flows) of financial liabilities:

Between Between

At 31 December 2012 Total Upto3 5 and 12 1and 2 Vore than
months 2 years
months years
liara and Murabaha financing 39,268 - 11,937 24,015 3,316
Trade and other payables 82,052 9,252 22,695 - 50,105
Total 121,320 9,252 34,632 24,015 53,421
Between Between
At 31 December 2011 Upto3 g and 12 1and 2 Vore than
Total months 2 years
months years
liara and Murabaha financing 50,053 - 32,506 10,916 6,631
Trade and other payables 80,533 6,274 24,154 - 50,105
Total 130,586 6,274 56,660 10,916 56,736
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

26 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)

Operational risk is the exposure to loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or
external events. The Group seeks to minimise this risk by continuous framing policies and procedures to identify, control
and manage these risks.

Regulatory risk is the risk of non-compliance with regulatory and legal requirements in the Kingdom of Bahrain and the
State of Kuwait. The Group’s Compliance Department is currently responsible for ensuring all regulations are adhered to.

Investment risk is defined as the uncertainty about the future benefits to be realised from an investment. The Group
has well-defined policies for managing investment risk. These policies cover investment authority limits and investment
assessment practices. The Investment Department, the Risk Department and the Finance Department study the impact
of transactions on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position and monitors the investment portfolio on a
continuous basis. Every investment application is reviewed by a designated body depending on the size and the nature
of the transaction. Fair valuation is generally conducted on a quarterly basis. The Group has a policy to ensure the
conservatism convention and to make the necessary provisions when they are warranted.

Legal risk includes the risk of unexpected losses from transactions and/or contracts not being enforceable under
applicable laws or from unsound documentation. The Group deals with several external law firms to support it in
managing the legal risk.

Reputation risk is the risk that negative perception regarding the Group’s business practices or internal controls, whether
true or not, will cause a decline in the Group’s investor base and lead to costly litigations which could have an adverse
impact on the liquidity of the Group. The Board of Directors examines the issues that are considered to have reputation
repercussions for the Group and issues directives to address these.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to
incur a financial loss. Cash is placed with a number of reputed banks. Management believes that no additional credit
risk beyond amounts provided for collection losses is inherent in the Group’s trade receivables.

Quantitative disclosures of the credit risk exposure in relation to financial assets are set out below. Further disclosures
regarding trade and other receivables, which are neither past due nor impaired, are provided in Note 9 to these
.consolidated financial statements

31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Carrying Maximum Carrying Maximum
value exposure value exposure

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6,109 6,109 11,139 11,139
Mudaraba and Murabaha investments 3,760 3,760 9,042 9,042
Trade and other receivables 67,946 67,946 67,377 67,377
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Inovest B.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

(Expressed in US$000’s)

26 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)

A significant amount of cash and cash equivalent is held with the following institutions:

Rating as at Balance as at Rating as at Balance as at

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2012 2012 2011 2011

Bahrain Islamic Bank BAA1! 650 BA3' 888
Kuwait Finance House A+? 1,087 A+? 3,635
[thmaar Bank N.A.3 3,836 N.A.3 5,790
Khaleeji Commercial Bank N.A.° 432 N.A.2 777

1. Moody’s long term rating
2. Fitch’s long term rating
3. Rating not available

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2012
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

26 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)

Currency rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s foreign currency transactions are predominantly in Bahrain
Dinars and other GCC currencies which are effectively pegged to the United States Dollars. Accordingly, the management does not consider the Group to have a significant currency rate risk.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities were denominated in the following currencies (US$000’s equivalent):

Financial assets

United States - - . United
Dollars Bahrain Dinars Saudi Riyals Kuwait Dinar Arab Emirates Dirhams Total
W%w 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Trade and other receivables 1,148 1,210 66,752 66,155 46 12 - - - - 67,946 67,377
Cash and cash equivalents 8 54 6,020 11,004 - - 77 77 4 4 6,109 11,139
Mudaraba and Murabaha

investments - - 3,760 9,042 - - - - - - 3,760 9,042
Available-for-sale investments 6,596 3,180 10,361 10,361 8,445 13,792 1,209 1,512 - - 26,611 28,845

Investment in a joint venture/
associates 10,939 13,577 56,018 53,646 23,854 23,776 - - - - 90,811 90,999
Total 18,691 18,021 142,911 150,208 32,345 37,580 1,286 1,589 4 4 195,237 207,402

Financial liabilities
United States Bahrain Dinars Total
Dollars

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
liara and Murabaha financing 2,500 5,000 36,768 45,053 39,268 50,053
Trade and other payables 166 1,220 81,886 79,313 82,052 80,533
Total 2,666 6,220 118,654 124,366 121,320 130,586
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

26 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)

Profit rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market rates. The
Group’s assets and liabilities are not considered by management to be sensitive to profit rate risk.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled between knowledgeable, wiling
parties in an arm’s length transaction.

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities, in the opinion of the management, are not materially
different from their carrying amounts.

Off-statement of financial position items
Assets Under Collective Management (AUM)

The details of assets managed/held on behalf of the clients as at 31 December is as follows:

Particulars Held under Discretionary/ 31 December 31 December
the name non-discretionary 2012 2011
Projects managed by the Individual
Company Shareholders Non-discretionary 28,530 25,318
Projects managed by Individual
subsidiaries of the Company Shareholders Non-discretionary 264,186 276,257
27 Zakah

The shareholders of the Company will be liable for the payment of Zakah.

28 Events after reporting date

There were no events subsequent to 31 December 2012 and occurring before the date of the report that are expected
to have a significant impact on these consolidated financial statements.
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